Washington State Supreme Court

ZBIGNIEW M. LASKOWSKI v. STATE OF WASHINGTON

DEPARTMENT OF LABOR

AND INDUSTRIES

THE SUPERIOR COURT OF WASHINGTON FOR THURSTON COUNTY

CAUSE NO. 16-2-04012-34

COURT OF APPEALS, DIVISION II OF STATE OF WASHINGTON NO.

53067-8-II

THE SUPREME COURT OF STATE OF WASHINGTON NO.-95785-5 977925

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF STATE OF WASHINGTON

STATE OF WASHINGTON

DEPARTMENT OF LABOR

AND INDUSTRIES, Respondent

٧.

ZBIGNIEW M. LASKOWSKI, Petitioner Pro Se

PETITION FOR REVIEW

ZBIGNIEW M. LASKOWSKI

PETITIONER, PRO SE

PO BOX 6195

OLYMPIA, WA 98507

(360) 918 4401

I.	ASSIGNMENTS OF ERRORS			
	A. UNPUBLISHED OPINION; COURT OF APPEALS, DIVISION II OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON NO. 53067-8-II			
	B. ISSUES PERTAINING TO ASSIGNMENTS OF ERRO	RS		
	4			
II.	ROUNS FOR REVIEW9-15			
III.	ONCLUSIONS15			
IV.	RELIEF SOUGHT			
V.	EXHIBITS			
	 COPIE OF ONE (1) PAGE OF LETTER TO JUDGE BRIAN WATKINS FROM DR. KEVIN BERRY, MD DATED 05/17/2016 			
	 COPIE OF PAGE 14 OF JUNE 28, 2016 IME REPOR BY DIANA KRAEMER, MD FOR CLAIM AB 17747; DOCKET NOS. 15 17653 & 15 17654 	Т		
	 COPIE OF PAGE 18 OF JUNE 28, 2016 IME REPOR BY DIANA KRAEMER, MD FOR CLAIM AB17747; 	Т		
	DOCKET NOS.15 17653 & 15 17654 4. COPIES OF PAGES 24 & 25 OF VERBATIM REPORT OF PROCEEDINGS, ZBIGNIEW M. LASKOWSKI V.			
	WASHINGTON STATE DEPARTMENT OF LABOR A INDUSTRIES; THURSTON COUNTY SUPERIOR COL CASE NO. 16-2-04012-34, ARGUMENT BY MR. BARNES, FEBRUARY 27, 2018 5. COPIE OF PAGE 26 OF VERBATIM REPORT OF PROCEEDINGS, ZBIGNIEW M. LASKOWSKI V. WASHINGTON STATE DEPARTMENT OF LABOR A INDUSTRIES. THURSTON COUNTY SUPERIOR COL	JR ^T		

- CASE NO. 16-2-04012-34; ARGUMENT BY MR. BARNES ON FEBRUARY 27, 2018
- COPIES OF 2 PAGES OF SOUTH SOUND REDIOLOGY REPORT DATED 3/20/2018 OF ZBIGNIEW LASKOWSKI, DOB 01/23/1957; MRN # 10461; REFERRER ROBERT LANG, MD; ADDENDUM 04/04/18 10:38 SIGNED BY DAVID KIM, MD.
- 7. COPIES OF 6 PAGES OF STIPULATION TO INFORMAL DEPOSITION NO. M2010-444 IN THE MATTER OF LICENSE TO PRACTICE AS A PHYSICIAN AND SURGEON OF JEFFREY E. PEARCE, MD LICENSE NO. MD00022290
- 8. COPIE OF 1 PAGE FROM WASHINGTON STATE DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND INDUSTRIES WEBSITE, PROVIDERS WHO CAN TREAT L&I PATIENTS PRINTED OUT 10/16/2019.

TABLE OF AUTHORITIES

STATUES

RCW 51.04.050, .060, 020 & 030

RCW 51.04.

RCW 51.08.140

RCW 51.32.220, .225, .240

RCW 51.52.100, .102, .115, .140

RCW 34.05.455, .562

WAC 296-20-01002, -270, -280, -290, -300, -250, -260, -220, -540,

-530, -590, -600, -610, -620, -630, -640, -670, -680

WAC 263-12-093

ASSIGNMENTS OF ERRORS

A. UNPUBLISHED OPINION; COURT OF APPEALS, DIVISION II OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON NO. 53067-8-II: PAGE

NO.11-2				
"In May 2015 necessary."				
NO.22				
"At a conference examination."				
NO.33				
"After completingCategory IV (4)."				
NO.43				
"Based on the necessary."				
NO.54				
"Laskowski alsoexamination."				
NO.64				
"Enteringand conclusions."				
NO.75				
"Because the partiesexamination."				
NO.86				
"Because the parties' agreementsuperior court."				
NO.97				
"Laskowski makesthese arguments."				
NO.107				
"None of Laskowski'sthere are verities on appeal."				
NO.117				
"Laskowski also appearson this point."				
NO.128				
"Moreover, bydisagrees with them."				

B. ISSUES PERTAINIG TO ASSIGNMENTS OF ERRORS: UNPUBLISH OPINION; COURT OF APPEALS, DIVISION II OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON NO. 53067-8-II:

NO.1 PAGE 1-2

The Department of Labor and Industries closed Claim AB 17747 in

May 2015 without valid medical evaluation, after Independent

Medical Examination administrated by Medical Consultants

Network and Dr. Silverman failed, due to disagreement between doctor and Petitioner over pronunciation of Dr. Karges name. The Department decided not to allow another IME to be performed.

That was first and the only one out of 7 IMEs performed in this claim which didn't went through.

NO.2 PAGE 2

The language this court use to describe what happen at the conference never appeared at that point. Words "binding medical examination", "bound" never appear or were pronounced.

[EXHIBIT 4]

NO.3 PAGE 3

Diana Kraemer, MD not only increased the category of

Petitioner's disability from Category III (3) to IV (4) showing a

progress of occupational disease but also indicated curative

treatment and necessity of future surgery (please see on page 18,

point 3 of Diana Kraemer, MD IME report dated June 28, 2016 for

Claim AB 17747, Docket Nos. 15-17653 & 15-17654) [EXHIBIT 3].

Her unexplained notion that central canal stenosis at

L 3-4 level is not cover by claim AB 17747 it could be a

consequence of ex-parte communication (RCW 34.05.455) with

ALJ William P. Gilbert from whom she took orders and most likely

she was not ready to implicate other doctors of malpractice. The

role of ALJ William P. Gilbert delegated at the Board of Industrial Insurance Appeals to financial division speaks its volume. Since John Barnes, AAG revealed hoax called "high ACE" or "high average current earnings", which he used since early '90 and the Petitioner started following his tip in calculation of workers compensation benefits, Board assign AJL William P. Gilbert who retaliated, by simply holding medical part of the AB 17747 claim against its financial aspects.

NO.4 PAGE 3

The Board of IIA illegally and against laws of WAC 263-12-093(1)(a)(c)(2)(a)(b)(4), and RCW 51.52.100 bypassed all these requirements. Diana Kraemer, MD as any other witness supposed to be sworn and testify (RCW 51.52.100), specially about all the irregularities which accrued in her June 28, 2016 report.

NO.5 PAGE 4

Board of IIA decisions are bounded by the content of laws as: WAC 263-12-093, RCW 51.52.100, and RCW 34.05.455(1)(2)(5). Bypassing them by deliberate omission creates injustice on the Board's part.

NO.6 PAGE 4

An agreement to use Diana Kraemer, MD, today's in question,

expertise, never meant to be unlawfully interrupted by ex-parte communication with ALJ William P. Gilbert. If not Hon. Carol Murphy disclosure during second day of the trial at the Thurston County Superior Court, not one including the Petitioner, wouldn't know about ALJ Gilbert criminal/ethical infraction. [EXHIBIT 4]

Again, the Board of Industrial Insurance Appeals didn't comply with the rules the legislature wants us to follow. Judge, active member of WSBA (WAC 263-12-093) supposed to write Proposed Decision and Orders. There couldn't be any other reason for absence of Proposed Decision and Orders than refusal to do so by ALJ William P. Gilbert, who already risked disbarment by his peers for unlawful act of ex-parte communication with Diana Kraemer, MD.

NO.8 PAGE 6

The Court of Appeals, Division II without due diligence affirmed superior court Findings and Conclusions. Consider that Petitioner didn't agree to ALJ William P. Gilbert ex-parte communication (see RCW 34.05.455) what breached the parties' agreement and because Proposed Decisions and Orders were never written by qualified judge and consulted with the parties to this litigation before the Board issued its order. [EXHIBIT 4]

NO.9 PAGE 7

Between October 2015 till April 2017 Petitioner was under regular medical care of Kevin Berry, MD who not only wrote letter to ALI Brian Watkins, Acting Deputy Chief Judge [EXHIBIT 1] but also, the BIIA regularly was receiving chart notes informing the Board and Department of Labor and Industries of current medical conditions of Petitioner, Zbigniew Laskowski. With instructions and orders possibly received from ALJ William P. Gilbert letter from Dr. Berry written on May 17, 2016 (short note on page 14 of June 28, 2016 IME report states: [EXHIBIT 2] "Dr. Berry writes to Judge Brian Watkins. That letter is read but not dictated into this report." Chart notes submitted from the Rehabilitation of Issaquah clinic never were added to the Petitioner file and remain ignored. This Court wrongly stated that Petitioner relies on records created after the date of Dr. Kraemer June 28, 2016 IME report, where clearly date 05/17/2016 of the letter from attending physician Dr. Berry showed that it was received by the Board month and half early before IME report from Dr. Kraemer. Other documents/chart notes and radiology reports from Dr. Trent Tredway of Seattle (12/2016), Dr. Christoph Hofstetter of University of Washington Neurosurgery Department (10/2017) or Dr. Robert Lang (03/2018-2019) are another proof of ongoing

medical problems of Petitioner's spine, once called fixed by Diana Kraemer, MD.

NO.10 PAGE 7

This Court may possibly miss on the fact that Thurston County

Superior Court decision was directly appealed to Supreme Court

of the State of Washington, so that's why the Court of Appeals,

Division II calls it "verities on appeal".

NO.11 PAGE 7

The Petitioner argument is supported by WAC 263-12-093 which the Court of Appeals, Division II seems only recognize of some parts of it.

NO.12 PAGE 8

Petitioner (Laskowski) challenges Dr. Diana Kraemer IME report dated June 28, 2016 and will continue to do so, because irregularities mainly created by the lack of integrity of the doctor and lack of oath never administrated when depositions were taken to answer questions which never got a chance to be asked. (see RCW 51.52.100)

GROUNDS FOR REVIEW

The Petitioner, Zbigniew M. Laskowski, whose mailing address is: Po Box 6195, Olympia WA 98507, petitions the Supreme Court of the State of Washington for review of the Washington State Court of Appeals, Division II, of Unpublished Opinion in the matter of Case No. 53067-8-II filed September 24, 2019.

At the issue is above mentioned Unpublished Opinion. Copies of it are attached to this Petition for Review.

The parties in the hearing are Petitioner herein and the Washington State Department of Labor and Industries.

This Petition for Review is timely filed with the proper court.

Petitioner has exhausted administrative remedies and is aggrieved by the decision of the Court of Appeals, Division II.

The Petitioner is in title to relief because:

The Petitioner, Zbigniew M. Laskowski, filed appeals with Board of Industrial Insurance Appeals (Board) from Department of Labor and Industries (Department) order ending the time-loss benefits on May 11, 2015 and from the second order dated May 14, 2015, without additional permanent partial disability. The parties agreed on Diana Kraemer, MD perform IME (Independent Medical Examination).

Dr. Kraemer issued her opinion that the Petitioner was not in need of farther medical treatment for his 2006 industrial injury but upgraded the lumbo-sacral impairment rating to Category IV. The Petitioner appealed Board of Industrial Insurance Appeals Order on Agreement of Parties dated September 12, 2016 because Dr. Diana Kraemer IME Report lack of admissibility and compliance with RCW 51.52.100, RCW 51.52.102 and RCW 51.52.115. (RCW 51.52.100 Proceedings before the board — Contempt: "Hearings shall be held in the county of the residence of the worker or beneficiary, or in the county where the injury

occurred, at the place designated by the board. Such a hearing shall be de novo and summary, but not witness testimony shall be received unless he or she shall first have been sworn to testify the truth, the whole truth and nothing but the truth in the matter being heard or unless his or her testimony shall have been taken by deposition according to the statues and rules relating to superior court of this state".

Dr. Diana Kraemer second IME report dated June 28, 2016 does not consists with what she wrote in her first 2012 IME report with regards to the treatment recommendation. She puts time limits in her newest 2016 IME Report, naming the year 2007, the last year when the Department should bare the medical and financial responsibility: "The conditions of the Lumbar sprain and lumbar radiculopathy is accepted as related to the Claim AB 17747. Therefore, MRI imaging, the surgery of January 25, 2007, and the treatment and imaging through December, 2007, are thought to be related to Claim AB 17747." (page 423 CABR)
"There is no recommended treatment related to Claim AB 17747. Mr. Laskowski is a candidate for lumbar decompression for treatment of central canal stenosis at L3-L4, unrelated to Claim AB 17747" (mid page 424 of CABR).

It has to be noted that Dr. Diana Kraemer when second time opinionated in this claim, decided to prejudice against the lumbar integral segment L3-L4 by excluding it and insisting that it shouldn't be consider part of the claimant lumbar.

To continue surprise potential readers (page 424-425 of CABR) Dr. Diana Kraemer wrote:" There is no progression related to the industrial injury that would alter those recommendations."

Farther on the same page (page 425 of CABR) Dr. Diana Kraemer equated impairment rating in this claim to Category IV (4) using WAC 296-20-280, what changed the previous category by Drs.

DeVita and Smith IME of 2008, by the whole one (1) Category of impairment rating.

Farther Dr. Diana Kraemer stated that she used "The Doctor's Worksheet for Rating Dorso-Lumbar and Lumbosacral Impairment" in accordance with WAC 296-20-280 (without forwarding copies of Worksheet), at the same not leaving doubt that Lumbar of the Petitioner's spine is not the only condition allowed for treatment in Claim AB 17747.

Next, I would like to direct the Court's attention to Dr. Diana

Kraemer June 28, 2016 Independent Medical Examination
report where she states as follow:" 10. Correct surgery: Mr.

Laskowsky has expressed concern that the wrong interspace was operated on. This is reasonable concern, since he has a common anomaly with 6-non-rib-bearing lumbar vertebrae. These are numbered according to different paradigms in this multiple imaging and operative reports. For clarification, all operative

procedures were performed at the second interspace above the Sacrum."

The Petitioner would like to direct the Court's attention to the mid of page 394 of CABR where Dr. Jeffery Pearce, the Neurosurgeon who performed the first surgery on Petitioner's lumbar, then not threaten any more by statute of limitation in this matter, in his chart notes dated 09/28/2015 reviled:" I reviewed an MRI scan of the thoracic and lumbar spine from 07/08/13. This was before his prior fusion. In the lumbar spine he had a previous decompression at the second interspace. He did have facet effusions and sagittally-oriented facets that certainly could have been unstable. I do not have the flexion/extension x-rays. He had mild spinal and lateral recess stenosis with minimal retrolisthesis at the third mobile interspace. A myelo CT following the fusion on 06/10/14 demonstrates a wide decompression and interbody fusion with instrumentation at the second mobile interspace. Again, there is mild spinal and lateral recess stenosis at the third interspace."

On the page 17 of Dr. Diana Kraemer June 28, 2016 IME report (page 423 of CABR):" This was the appropriate level for these symptoms and imaging findings. This is no evidence that the procedure was performed "at the wrong level". There is not

evidence that the ruptured disc was not addressed during surgery because of wrong level surgery. The lumbar fusion was performed at the appropriate interspace, to address the spondylolisthesis.

Mr. Laskowski can be reassured that the operations were performed at the correct level."

Second interspace in Petitioner's lumbar where all surgeries where done should than be marked as L5-6.

This correct conclusion should logically draw another one that the third and fourth interspaces, respectively L4-5 and L3-4 are the two interspaces that need still medical attention.

Dr. Diana Kraemer limited her review to sprain and strain of Lumbar only but by using the Worksheet appropriate for Dorso-Lumbo-Sacral Lumbar strongly suggests that Dr. Kraemer was aware of all 10 conditions pertaining to the Claim AB 17747.

The Department of Labor and Industries when adjudicated this claim used Medical Billing Codes as follow: 846.0, 724.4, 724.3 (from 01/05/2006 till 09/30/2015), M54.15, M54.14, M54.16, S33.8XXA, M54.17, M51.14, M54.31 (from 10/01/2015 till 2099) what respectively stands for Sprain and Strain of lumbosacral, Thoracic/Lumbosacral Nueritis/Radiculitis UNSPEC, Sciatica, Radiculopathy Thoracolumbar Region, Radiculopathy Thoracic Region, Radiculopathy Lumbar Region, Sprain OTH parts Lumbar

Spine & Pelvis INIT ENC, Radiculopathy Lumbosacral Region,
Intervertebral Disc D/O with Radiculopathy Thoracic and Sciatica
Right Side.

Because of this long list not coincidentally created by the Washington State Department of Labor and Industries, and still unresolved L4-5 and L3-4 medical issues in this claim, by the authority of WAC 296-20-01002(3) the Petitioner did not reach yet the MMI (Maximum Medical Improvement), equivalent to "fix and stable."

Farther, the Court may notice another Attending Physician in the Claim AB 17747. Dr. Kevin Berry who provide medical services between November 05, 2015 till May 2017, wrote letter dated May 17, 2016, acknowledge by Dr. Diana Kraemer in her June 28, 2016 report, which reads:" I suspect that he will have chronic and ongoing low back and leg pain indefinitely despite continued medical treatment but it would be my hope that we could significantly improve his pain control and function. At this point, he is demonstrating progressive decline in terms of function due to his pain complains" (page 207-208 o CABR).

CONCLUSIONS

Dr. Diana Kraemer 2016 Independent Medical Examination contains several innuendos and missed opportunities to apply common knowledge and Science, which could be avoid it if

RCW 51.52.100, RCW 51.52.102, RCW 51.52.115,
RCW 34.05.455(1)(2)(5), RCW 34.05.562 and WAC 263-12-093
were followed by the Board of Industrial Insurance Appeals or the
Thurston County Superior Court; either of the courts did.
Superior Court Judge Hon. Carol Murphy used bulling when the
Petitioner address the issue of being blacklisted in the State of
Washington and not be able to retain lawyer for proper legal
representation: "You just didn't find one yet".
Files in Thurston County Superior Court Cause No. 16-2-04012-34

are heavily altered by Court's orders and lack of respond to

Petitioner motions.

The Thurston County Clerk's Office took active role in blocking, potentially delaying of files or not filling documents at all.

The Supreme Court of the State of Washington shall reverse the Thurston County Superior Court order dated May 25, 2018 as an order of prejudice and perjury.

The Unpublished Opinion of the Washington State Court of Appeals, Division II for the matter No. 53067-8-II contains several innuendos and incontinences of laws and shall be reversed.

ALJ William P. Gilbert for his role in tampering with evidence alleged by Hon. Carol Murphy and for intervening into the final medical opinion of Diana Kraemer, MD has to be noted.

Exhibits 7 and 8 included with this Petition shall help this Court gain opinion of the quality of medical aid still use by the Department of Labor and Industries. It vital for all workers who experienced injuries to receive high quality of medical help.

Doctors with two malpractices on their record should be subject to only limited licensing. Their presents on Department of Labor and Industries preferred list of providers it is continued problem for the Department to fix.

RELIEF SOUGHT

Please order the Department of Labor and Industries for farther adjudication of Claim AB 17747.