NO. 97792-5 

 
SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON 

 

 
 

ZBIGNIEW LASKOWSKI, 
 

 Petitioner, 
 

v. 
 

WASHINGTON STATE DEPARTMENT OF LABOR & INDUSTRIES, 
 

 Respondent. 
 

 
ANSWER TO PETITION FOR REVIEW 

DEPARTMENT OF LABOR & INDUSTRIES 
 

 
ROBERT W. FERGUSON 
Attorney General 
 
Anastasia Sandstrom 
Senior Counsel 
WSBA No. 24163 
Office Id. No. 91018 
800 Fifth Ave., Suite 2000 
Seattle, WA 98104 
(206) 464-6993 
 
 

FILED 
SUPREME COURT 

STATE OF WASHINGTON 
51612020 9:06 AM 

BY SUSAN L. CARLSON 
CLERK 



 

 i

I. INTRODUCTION 
 

Settlements at the Board of Industrial Insurance Appeals are 

binding on the parties to the agreement. Zbigniew Laskowski seeks to 

overturn a settlement he agreed to based on a claim that the wrong 

procedure was followed, namely that there should have been sworn 

testimony about the merits of his case. But he ignores that he entered into 

a settlement agreement that took away the need for testimony.   

Laskowski entered into a settlement for a binding medical 

examination under WAC 263-12-093. In a binding examination, the 

parties agree that after the claimant attends a medical examination 

performed by an examining doctor selected by agreement, the parties will 

be bound by the examiner’s conclusions. This procedure benefits the 

parties because it allows them to avoid the delay and uncertainty of 

protracted litigation and to resolve their dispute with an objective medical 

opinion free of cost. 

The Board properly followed WAC 263-12-093’s provisions and 

so the trial court upheld the settlement. The Court of Appeals correctly 

affirmed, and review should be denied. 

II. ISSUE 
 

The Board provides a mechanism for parties to a workers’ 

compensation appeal to have an independent medical examination resolve 
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the parties’ disputes. WAC 263-12-093(4). Laskowski entered into a 

settlement to participate in a binding examination, and the Board issued an 

order on agreement of parties based on the doctor’s findings. Did the trial 

court err in ruling that Laskowski should be bound to the settlement 

agreement?  

III. STATEMENT OF THE CASE 
 

Laskowski injured his back in 2006 while working, and the 

Department accepted his claim for workers’ compensation benefits. 

AR 14, 209. He received several years of treatment and other benefits, and 

at one point the Department closed his claim and then later reopened it 

after his back condition worsened. AR 18, 408-20. After reopening the 

claim and providing more treatment and time loss compensation, the 

Department eventually ended time loss compensation and closed his claim 

again in 2015. AR 24. Laskowski appealed to the Board. AR 1.  

At the Board, Laskowski entered into a settlement for a binding 

medical examination. AR 1, 50-51. As part of this agreement, he agreed 

that an examination would take place and then the Board would enter an 

order based on the examination report: 

At the conference, the parties agreed to resolve this matter 
by means of a binding medical examination.  
. . . . 
The examining physician’s ultimate opinions will resolve 
all issues in this appeal. The parties will be bound by these 
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opinions. The Board will issue an Order on Agreement of 
Parties based on these opinions. 
 

AR 50-51.  

In a binding medical examination, the Board submits a list of 

proposed questions to a doctor, and the parties agree to abide by the results 

of the examination. See WAC 263-12-093(4). The Board judge sent the 

agreed questions to the doctor, with medical records. AR 56-400, 401-02. 

After an examination, the doctor filed her report. AR 407-25. The doctor 

found Laskowski had more disability than the Department had found in its 

order, but her findings were otherwise consistent with the Department’s 

closing order. AR 422-25, 426. She agreed with the Department that 

Laskowski required no further treatment and so was at maximum medical 

improvement. AR 424. 

After receiving the report, consistent with the parties’ agreement to 

resolve the claim based on the agreed examiner’s findings, the Board 

entered an order affirming the Department order ending wage replacement 

benefits and closing the claim, but directing the Department to provide the 

additional permanent partial disability to Laskowski in the binding 

examination report. AR 1. Laskowski appealed to the superior court, 

which affirmed the Board order. CP 306-09. The Court of Appeals 

affirmed the trial court, and now Laskowski seeks review. 
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IV. ARGUMENT  
 

Laskowski states no ground for review under RAP 13.4, and none 

exists. This case involves the routine principle that parties should be 

bound by their settlement agreement and presents no reason for review. 

A. Laskowski Is Bound by the Settlement Agreement 
 

Laskowski agreed that the Board should decide the case based on 

the facts as found by the doctor performing the binding examination. 

AR 50. Laskowski admits that he entered in an agreement to have an 

examination by an independent medical examiner. Pet. 10. At the Board, 

“[i]f an agreement concerning final disposition of any appeal is reached by 

all the parties present or represented at a conference, an order shall be 

issued in conformity with their agreement, providing the board finds the 

agreement is in accordance with the law and the facts.” WAC 263-12-

093(1). WAC 263-12-093(4) provides for agreed examinations: 

The parties present at a conference may agree to a 
vocational evaluation or a further medical examination of a 
worker or crime victim, including further evaluative or 
diagnostic tests, except such as require hospitalization, by 
medical or vocational experts acceptable to them, or to be 
selected by the industrial appeals judge. In the event the 
parties agree that an order on agreement of parties or 
proposed decision and order may be issued based on the 
report of vocational evaluation or medical examination, the 
industrial appeals judge may arrange for evaluation or 
examination and the board will pay reasonable and 
necessary expenses involved. Upon receipt by the board, 
copies of the report of such examination or evaluation will 
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be distributed to all parties represented at the conference 
and further appropriate proceedings will be scheduled or an 
order on agreement of parties or proposed decision and 
order issued. 
 
Parties are bound by settlement agreements entered into on the 

record, including binding examinations. CR 2A; WAC 263-12-093(4); 

Doris E. Slater, No. 860407, 1987 WL 61354, at *2 (Wash. Bd. Indus. Ins. 

Appeals Apr. 2, 1987). 

Laskowski’s primary argument is that the Board judge should have 

followed provisions related to hearing procedures, including using sworn 

testimony and issuing proposed decisions, in RCW 51.52.100, 

RCW 51.52.104, and other statutes. Pet. 6, 9-11, 15-16. Providing sworn 

testimony and a proposed decision and order is unnecessary under 

WAC 263-12-093(4). This is because the case has settled and there is no 

hearing; instead, the matter is resolved under WAC 263-12-093(4). 

Using a binding exam benefits all parties, including injured 

workers. The Board pays for the exam, eliminating the need for the worker 

to pay. A binding exam can reduce the uncertainty of litigation. And 

Laskowski benefited here because his permanent partial disability award 

increased. 

Laskowski has not shown that WAC 263-12-093(4) was not 

followed. The Board judge arranged for questions to the doctor and 
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received a report, upon which an order was entered. This is what was 

agreed to. AR 50. A case involving routine adherence to a settlement 

agreement does not warrant review. 

Related to his argument about procedure, Laskowski accuses the 

Board judge of misconduct, and he levies the same charge against the 

superior court. AR 5, 7, 16. But he produces no evidence of ex parte 

contact nor of altered records, and these arguments should be disregarded. 

Inchoate accusations do not support a petition for review. 

B. The Court Should Not Reach Laskowski’s Arguments About 
the Merits of the Doctor’s Report 

 
Laskowski raises several arguments related to the content of the 

agreed examiner’s report and other medical evidence. Pet. 11-15. But this 

case is resolved by the settlement agreement. Laskowski agreed to abide 

by the doctor’s findings, and he cannot now disagree with the discussion 

in the report.  

V. CONCLUSION 
 

Laskowski freely entered into a settlement and he shows no reason 

to disturb this agreement. Review of this petition is not warranted.